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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/yiS/OJVFO/l CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-4455 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4455

Fax:603-271-4729 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.tih.gov/dcyf

December 18. 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
.And the Honorable Council

State House. . '

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION'

'■Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children,
;Yduth and Families (DCYF), to retroactively amend an existing sole source contract with
Waypoint (f/k/a Child and Family Services of New Hampshire), Vendor #17766-6002, 464
Chestnut Street, PO Box 448, Manchester, NH 03105 for the provision of services to assist
in closing overdue child protection assessments by increasing the price limitation by
$320,000 from $253,844 to an amount not to exceed $573,844, and extending the contract
completion date from December 31, 2018 to December 31. 2019, effective upon approval
by the Governor and,Executive Council. 100% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
December 20, 2017, (Item #138), and subsequently amended on May 16, 2018 (ltem #12).

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for SFY 2019,
and anticipated to be available in SFY 2020:. '
05-95-045-450010-61270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE,
EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT

SFY Class /
Account

Class Title Job
Number

Current
Budget
Amount

Increase/
(Decrease)

Amount

Total
Amount

2018
102-

500731
Contracts for

Program Services 45030354 $126,922 $0 $126,922

2019
102-

500731
Contracts for

Program Services 45030354 $126,922 $160,000 $286,922

2020
102-

500731
Contracts for

Program Services 45030354 $0 $160,000 $160,000

Totals: $253,844 $320,000 $573,844



EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because the decision to request additional time for the
Contractor to continue to review overdue child protection assessment cases, was not
finalized in time' to present this request to the Governor and Executive Council before the
current contract completion date of December 31, 2018.

This request is sole source because the Contractor has a broad and deep
understanding of the New Hampshire child protection system and has relationships with law
enforcement, medical, and educational professionals throughout the State of New
Hampshire. This work requires the Contractor to have the capability to recruit and train a
qualified workforce quickly. The Contractor has demonstrated the ability to recruit and
maintain a sufficient numbers of qualified workers to meet the requirements of this contract.

Funds in this contract will be used to make payment to the Contractor to continue to
close overdue child protection assessment cases from DCYF offices statewide. Closing of
assessments will be assigned to the Contractor and completed as requested during the
contract period. The Contractor will review the specific child protective assessments in
need of closure, and complete required collateral contacts, data entry and required cipsing
paperwork for these assessments in accordance with the Department's policies.

As referenced in Form P-37, Paragraph 18, General Provisions of this contract, and
in Exhibit C^f. Reyisipns to General Provisions of this contract, the State reserves the. right
to amend'the terms of the contract and to renew the contract for up to one (1) additional
year, cpntihgent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Amendment #1 extended the contract for six (6) months. This request, if approved,
will exercise the remaining available, six (6) rrionths dfjenewal, and will extend the contract
for an additional six (6) months'. , '

The following performance measures will continue to be used to measure the
effectiveness of this contract:

• The Contractor will close approximately thirty-five (35) assessments each week.

• The Contractor will close up to 1,800 assessments by the end of the contract period.

The Contractor has achieved satisfactory results under this Contract, and the
Department is satisfied with the performance and results of the Contractor.

As of March 9, 2018, the Department had 1,897 overdue assessments. Due to Child
Protection Service Worker caseload levels, current child protection assessment staff and
supervisors are not able to complete this work. The Division anticipates that the
Contractor's success rate will continue if this request is approved.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for
services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services
has been received from the State Legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2020-
2021 biennium.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this . request, the
Department may continue to fail to meet the mandates of NH RSA 169-0."Child Protection
Act"., which require,that child protective assessments are closed within 60 days of receipt
by the agency. There are currently more than 1,800 overdue assessments pending closure.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds.

Re;Sf5ectfully submitted.

5ffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Closure of Overdue Child Protective Assessments

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the

Closure of Overdue Child Protective Assessments

This 2^ Amendment to the Closure of Overdue Child Protective Assessments contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #2") dated this 4th day of December, 2018, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and Waypoint (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a
place of business at 464 Chestnut Street, Manchester, NH 03105.
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on December 20, 2017 (Item #13B), and amended on May 16, 2018 (Item # 12), the Contractor agreed
to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended
and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement and pursuant
to Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions, Paragraph 3, the parties may amend and renew the
agreement for up to one (1) year upon written agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor
and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.3, Contractor Name, to read:

Waypoint.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

December 31, 2019.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to increase Price Limitation to read:

$573,844.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White.

5. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

6. Delete Exhibit B-2 Amendment #1, Budget, in its entirety and replace with Exhibit 8-2

Amendment #2, Budget.

7. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment #2, Budget.

8. Add Exhibit H, Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke.

9. Add Exhibit I, Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate Agreement.

10. Add Exhibit J, Certification Regarding The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act

(FFATA) Compliance.

Waypoint Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Closure of Overdue Child Protective Assessments

11. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

Waypoint Amendment #2

SS-2018-DCYF-12-ASMT Page 2 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Closure of Overdue Child Protective Assessments

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

l3i
Date

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Services

Joseph B^^ib$&pl'
Director/

Waypoint

Name;

?rt 1^0

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of AZ/y County of_ , before the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated aboye.

N

re of NoTary Public or Justice of the Peace

^ILL LoiA/ieLL-
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

^  d\My Commission Expires:

JILL M. LOWELL, Notary Public
State of New Hampahire

My Commiealon Expiree January 18,2022

Waypoint

SS-2018-DCYF-12-ASMT

Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Closure of Overdue Child Protective Assessments

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Dat

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on;

Dy

ANam®

Tte:

the Gpvernor and Executive Council of

(date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Waypoint

SS-2018-DCYF-12-ASMT

Amendment #2
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Exhibit B-2 Amendment #2

Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Waypoint

SS-2018-DCYF.12-ASMT

Closure of Overdue Child Protective

Budqet Request for: Assessments

(Name ofRFP)

SPY 2019 Twelve (12) Months (July 1, 2018 to
Budqet Period: June 30, 2019)

Direct Indirect' Total Allocation Method for

Line Item Increrhental Fixed -  r Indirect/Fixed Cost

1. Total SaiarvA/Vaqes $  189,553.00 $ 16,232.00 S 205,785.00 % of program cost to total costs
2. Employee Benefits $  59.717.00 $ 2,871.00 $ 62,588.00 % of program cost to total costs

3. Consultants $ $ -

4. Equipment: $ $ -

Rental $ $ -

Repair and Maintenance $ $  1,278.00 $ 1,278.00 % of program cost to total costs
Purchase/Depreciation $ $  836.00 $ 836.00 % of program cost to total costs

5. Supplies: $ $ -

Educational $ $ -

Lab $ $ -

Pharmacy $ $ -

Medical $ $ -

Office $ $ 180.00 $ 180.00 % of program cost to total costs
6. Travel $  8,550.00 $ 260.00 $ 8,810.00 % of program cost to total costs
7. Occupancy $ $ 1,144.00 $ 1,144.00 % of program cost to total costs
8. Current Expenses $ $ -

Telephone $ $  410.00 $ 410.00 % of program cost to total costs
Postaqe $ $ -

Subscriptions $ $ - % of program cost to total costs

Audit and Leqal $ $ -

Insurance $ $  227.00 $ 227.00 % of program cost to total costs
Board Expenses $ $ - % of program cost to total costs

9. Software $ $ -

10, Marketinq/Communications $ $  252.00 $ 252.00

11, Staff Education and Traininq $  375.00 $  119.00 $ 494.00 % of program cost to total costs
12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $ $  1,385.00 $ 1,385.00 % of program cost to total costs
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ -

Interest Expense $ $ 3,533.00 $ 3,533.00 % of program cost to total costs
$ $ $ -

$ $ $ -

$ $ $ -

$ $ -

TOTAL $  258,195.00 $ 28,727.00 286,922.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 11.1%

Waypolnt
SS-2018-DCYF-12-ASMT

Exhibit B-2 Amendment #2
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Exhibit B-3 Amendment #2

Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name; Waypoint

83.2018-DCYF-12-ASMT

Closure of Overdue Child Protective

Budqet Request for: Assessments

(Name ofRFP)

SPY 2020 Six (6) Months (July 1, 2019 to
Budqet Period: December 31, 2019)

Direct 'Indirect Total Allocation Method for

Line Item Increrhental . Fixed Indirect/Fixed Cost

1. Total SalafvA/Vaqes $  94,246,00 $  9,686.00 $  103,932.00 % of program cost to total costs
2. Employee Benefits $  47,485.00 $  1,714.00 $  49,199.00 % of program cost to total costs

3. Consultants $ $

4. Equipment: $ $

Rental $ $

Repair and Maintenance $ $  763.00 $  763.00 % of program cost to total costs

Purchase/Depreciation $ $  499.00 $  499.00 % of program cost to total costs

5. Supplies: $ $

Educational $ $

Lab $ $

Pharmacy $ $

Medical $ $

Office $ $  107.00 $  107.00 % of program cost to total costs

6. Travel $  750.00 $  112.00 $  862.00 % of program cost to total costs

7. Occupancy $ $  683.00 $  683.00 % of program cost to total costs

8. Current Expenses $ $

Telephone $ $  245.00 $  245.00 % of program cost to total costs

Postaqe $ $

Subscriptions $ $  - % of program cost to total costs

Audit and Leqal $ $

Insurance $ $  135.00 $  135.00 % of program cost to total costs

Board Expenses $ $  - % of program cost to total costs

9. Software $ $

10. Marketinq/Communications $ $  150.00 $  150.00

11. Staff Education and Traininq $  375.00 $  114.00 $  489.00 % of program cost to total costs
12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $ $  827.00 $  827.00 % of program cost to total costs

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $

Interest Expense $ $  2,109.00 $  2,109.00 % of program cost to total costs

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $

TOTAL $  142,856.00 $  17,144.00 $  160,000.00 1
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 12.0%

Waypoint
SS-2018-DCYF-12-ASMT

Exhibit B-3 Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided In private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: I

^ 'i -: rr. j-.l j
Me Name: \Name:

Title:

lental Tobacco Smoke iN /j I
Page 1 of 1 Dale t fy /1Q

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aoareaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the UnitedStates
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 1 of 6 Date it/iVi/ iV



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her desig nee.

n. "Securitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement O 7» / V/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Qbliaationfi and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor InHiais

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement /,. /i^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use anddisclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall makeavailable
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the BusinessAssociate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed toin
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business ̂

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor initials ^fK
Health insurance Portability Act
BusinessAssociate Agreement 11\/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Qbliaations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. ̂

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act .
Business Associate Agreement .*) / i / \/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit!

e. Seoreoation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit i or the application thereof to any
^  person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or

conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition: to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit i are declared severabie.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

□apartment of Health and Human Services

The Stai

Signa^fl^ of Authorized Representative

Name ofAithorlzed Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

I / ''//I
Date

ame or the Contractor

Authignat ire prized Representative

Nam^ of Authorized Representative

AtAAf/
Authorized RepnTitle of Authorized Representative

aM{
Date' '

3/2014 Exhibit I
Hedlth Insurancs Porlabilily Act
Business Associate Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA^ COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

lafeDate Name:

Title:

(^0

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

is 0^'S<,C)1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

/ NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/DHHS/110713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incidenf means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Extiibit K Contractor Inilials^^A t
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If

End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, othenwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. Ail servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless othenwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37:

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that WAYPOINT is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on September 25, 1914. 1 further certify that

ail fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 62585

Cerlificale Number: 0004215672

5?

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afTixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 27th day of November A.D. 2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

OFFICE OF SECRETARY OF STATE

CERTIFIED COPY

I, David M. Scanlan, Deputy Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that the attached is a true copy

of AMENDMENT(10/I7/20I8), as ̂  New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation of WAYPOINT previously CHILD AND FAMILY

SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE. NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S AID SOCIETY, NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S

AID & PROTECTIVE SOCIETY as filed in this office and held in the custody of the Secretary of State.

Business ID: 62585

Certificate Number; 4198435

SI

y
I&.

o ■©

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

hereto set my hand and cause to be alTixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this l7thdayof October A.D. 2018.

David M. Scanlan

Deputy Secretary of State
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Recording fee: $25.00
Use black print or type.

Filed .

Dale Filed; 10/17/2018 10:15:00 AM

EfTeciive Dale : II/I6/20I8 04:30:00 PM

Filing iV: 4198432 Pages:!
Business ID: 62585

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Slate

Siaic of New Hampshire

RSA 292:7

AFFIDAVIT OF AMENDMENT

OF

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire

A NEW HAMPSHIRE NONPROFIT CORPORATION

I. William Conrad .. the undersigned, being the Chairman of the Board of Trustees

(Note 1) of the above named New Hampshire nonprofit corporation, do hereby certify that a meeting was

held for the purpose of amending the articles of agreement and the following amendment(s) were

approved by a majority vote of the corporation's Trustees (Note 2)

The name of the Corporation shall be changed to: Waypolnt

Effective as of November 16. 2018.

(sr more space is rweded, attach eddllionel sheet(s).j

A true record, attest:

Print or type name:

TiUe:

Date signed:

(Signature)

William Conrad

Chairman of the Board of Trustees

f

Notes: 1. Clerk, secretary or other officer.

2. Enter either "Board of Directors" or Truslees".

DISCLAIMER: All documents filed with the Corporation Division L>ecome public records and will be available for
public inspection in either tangible or electronic form.

Mailing Address - Corporation Division, NH Dept of State, 107 N Main St. Rm 204, Concord, NH 03301-4989
Physical Location • State House Annex, 3rd Floor, Rm 317, 25 Capitol SL Concord, NH

Pile a coDv with Clerk of the town/cltv of the principal place of business.
FormNP-0 (9/2015)



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, _WILLIAM CONRAD.

(Name of the elected Oflicer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

do hereby certiiy that:

1.1 am a d^y elected Officer of. .WAY^OnfT.

(Agency Name)

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 12/4/18 ;; :
(Dare)

RESOLVED: That rhis corporation enters into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting through its
Department of Health-and Human Services.

RESOLVED: That the PRESIDENT AND. CEO^

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contraa with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

BORJA ALVAREZ DE TOLEDO is the duly elected

(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

PRESIDENT/CEO

(Tide of Contract Signatory)

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the/V day of l>e6E/KBefi,

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Coimty of

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _ day of 20 / F .

By

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

t  ' - ,

(NOTARV SEAL)
i  ' I ^

Commission Expires:

otary rwbiic/Justice of the Peace)

JILL M. LOWELL, Notary Public
State of New Hampshire

My Commission Expires January 18,2022

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1,2005
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Melanson
ACCOUNTAMTS • AUOITORi-

121 River Front Drive

Manchester, NH 03102

(603)669-6150
,  , j » A J-. . i-i meiansonheath.com
Independent Auditors Report

Additional Offices:

To the Board of-Trustees Nashua.NH

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire Cree^fieid'tiA
Ellsworth. ME

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Child and ■
Family Services of New Hampshire, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2017, and the related consolidated statements
of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this Includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial stater
ments based on our audit. We conducted our audit in. accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. .Those standards require that we plan
and.perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consoli
dated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or er>or.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
In order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not



for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of signifi
cant accounting estimates made by management.- as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Child and Family Services of New
Hampshire as of December 31, 2017, and the changes In net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted In the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited. Child and Family Services of New Hampshire's 2016
financial'statements, and we expressed an unmodified opinion on^those audited
financial statements in our report dated March 28, 2017. In our opinion, the summa
rized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2016 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements as a whole. The Consolidated Schedule of Operating Expenses
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
consolidated financial .statements. Such information is the responsibility of manage
ment and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consoli
dated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting, and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated'
financial statements as a whole.



other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated March 27. 2018 on our consideration of Child and Family Services of New
Hampshire's Internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compli
ance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or
on-compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Child and Family Services of
New Hampshire's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

March 27, 2018



CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Consolidated Statemenrof Financial Position
December 31, 2017

(with comparative totals as of December 31. 2016)

ASSETS •

Unrestricted

Temporarily

Restricted

Permanently

Restricted

2017

Total

2016

Total

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Conlributions receivable

$  223.209

884.748

241,546
40,000

$  667.222 S $  890,431

884,748
241,546

40,000

$  1,032.696

603,415

201,052

40,000

Total Current Assets 1,389.503 667,222
-

2,056,725 1,877.163

Investrnents

Beneficial interest held in trust

Property and equipment, net

TOTAL ASSETS

15.309,844

5,340.055

657,676

926,307

1.662,669
1,867,906

17.630.209
1,867,906
6,266,362

15,900,471

1.735,979

6.321-.651

t  22.039.402 $ 2.251,205 S 3.530,595 .$ 27.821.202 $ 25,835,264

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Other liabilities

Bonds payable

Total Current Liabilities

95,667
666,502

69,062
140.000

971,231

95,667

666,502

69,062

140.000

971,231

126,770

816,144

21,387
135.000

1,099,301

Bonds payable, net of current portion
Deferred loans - NHHFA

interest rate swap agreements

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net Assets:

Donor restricted

Board designated
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

4,205,000
1,250,000

1.062:342

7,488,573

15,309,844
r759.0151

14,550,829

2,251,205 3,530,595

2.251.205 3.530.595

4,205,000

1,250,000
1.062.342

7.488.573

5,781,800

15,309,844
f759.015l

20.332.629

4.345.005

1,250,000
1.168.384

7,862,690

- 5,132,659

14.027,737
(1.187.622)

17.972.574

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS S 22.039.402 $ 2.251.205 $ 3,530.595 27.821.202 t 25.835.264

The accorhpanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CHILD AND FAMILY SERWCES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Consolidated,Slatemenl of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31,2017

(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31,2016)

Support and Revenue:
Support:

Contributions

Government grants

In-kind contributions

Income from special events, net
Revenue:-

Service fees

Other

Net assets released from restricb'on;
Program releases
Capital campaign releases
Endowment releases

Endowment transfer to support operations

Tola! Support and Revenue

Operating Expenses:.
Program services
Management and general
Fundraising

Total Operating Expenses

Change in net assets before
non-operating items

Non-Operating Items:
Investment income (loss)
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swap
Change in beneficial interest
Interest Income

Endowment transfer to support operations

Total Non-Operating Items

Change in net assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

- Temporarily Permanently 2017 2016

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total

376,950 5  1,080,728 $  265,005 $  1,722,683 i  1,203,158

6,979,130 . - 6,979,130 7,142,337

159,343 - 159.343 226,102

392,150 - -
392,160 322,062

2,532.863 . 2.532,863 1,704,326

32,023 - •
32,023 14,630

929.740 (929.740) - -

61,405 (81,405) - -
-

75,206 (75,206) - - -

694,255 . - 694,255 735,308

12,253,075 (5,623) . 265,005 12,512,457 11,347,923

10.374,824 10,374.824 9,975,559

1,350,475 - - 1,350,475 1,252,588

397.992 . - 397.992 462,536

12,123,291 - . 12,123.291 11.690.681

129,784 (5.623) 265,005 389,166 (342,758)

2,168,644 257,832 2,426,476 1,156,056

106.042 . 106,042 138,439
. - 131.927 131,927 (119)

699 - - 699 12

(694,255) - - (694,255) (735,308)

1,581,130 257,832 131,927 1,970,889 559,080

1,710.914 252,209 396,932 2,360,055 216,322

12,839,915 1,998,996 3,133,663 17,972.574 17,756,252

14,550,829 $ 2,251,205 $  3,530,595 $ 20,332,629 i 17,972,574

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Consolidated St.atefnent of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31. 2017

(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2016)

Program Management - 2017 2016

Sen/ices and Genera! Fundraisina total Total

Personnel expense;
Salaries and wages $  5,842.108 $  821.492 $ 265,130 $  6,928,730 $  6,669,191
Employee benefits 680,093 75.328 25,925 781,346 624,248
Payroll related costs' 646.231 73.785 31,004 751,020 691,003
Mileage reimbursement 418.205 2,363 959 421,527 415,527
Contracted services 485,786 44,338 16,950 547.074 537,359

Subtotal personnel expense 8,072.423 1,017.306 339,968 9,429.697 8,937,328

Accounting - 30.330 - 30,330 28,650
Assistance to individuals 744.299 - - 744,299 681,368
Communications 145.684 3,950 5,312 154,946 149,797
Conferences, conventions, meetings 29.850, 12.376 3,493 45,719 62,030

Depreciation 248.160 68.590 - 316,750 322,236
In kind contributions 135,809 23,594 - 159,403 226,102
Insurance 64,583 7.550 2,545 74,678 75,539
interest 229,449 70,600 - 300.049 291,014
Legal - . 27,320 - 27,320 54,911
Membership dues 18;203 20,019 2,404 40,626 29,614
Miscellaneous 30,645 10,129 2,291 43,065 142,533.
Occupancy 393,419 24,954 8,195 426,568 397,580
Printing and publications 33,999 4.097 30,005 68,101 63,800
Rental and equipment maintenance 86.533 21,602 1,334 109,469 103,322
Supplies 82.804 7,879 2,303 92,986 73,795
Travel 58,964 179 142 59,285 51,062

Total Functional Expenses $  10.374.824 $  1.350.475 $ 397,992 $  12,123.291 '$ 11,690,681

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2016)

2017 2016

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets $  2,360,055. $  218,322
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation .  316,750 322,236
Restricted contributions (265,005) (12,066)
Realized (gain) loss on investments 60,566 - (363,382)
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments (2.049,713) (546,408)
Change in beneficial interest in trust (131,927) 119

Change in interest rate swap (106,042) . (138,439)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (281,333)- 58,729
Prepaid expenses (40,494) (1,332)
Contributions receivable -  ■ (40,000)
Accounts payable (31,103) (57,023)
Accrued expenses (149,642) 259,691
Other liabilities 47,675 -

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities (270,213) (301,553)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchases of investments (15,732.031) (144,705)
Proceeds from sale of investments 15.991.440 684,043

Purchase of fixed assets (261,461) (118,812)

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Investing Activities (2,052) 420,526

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Restricted contributions 265,005 12,066
Payment of long term debt (135,005) (125,000)

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Financing Activities 130,000 (112,934)

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (142,265) 6,039

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginnitig 1,032,696 1,026,657

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending $  890.431 $  1,032,696

■  SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:

Interest Paid $  300,049 $  291,014

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31. 2017

1. Description of Organization

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire (the Organization) is a nonprofit
organization, founded in 1850, that currently aids more than 20,000 individu
als, statewide, through an array of social services. -

These services span the life cycle from prenatal to seniors, and can be grouped
into four basic categories:

1. Early Childhood - Family Support & Education Services
Over 4,500 parents received education and support to improve parenting,
strengthen families, prevent child abuse and neglect, and ensure healthy
development of children. Over 500 young children starting life at a disad
vantage received critical services to ensure a good beginning and to opti
mize their chance for life-long success. Some of the programs focused on
early childhood include:

Early Support and Services - Early Support and Services provides
family-centered support and therapies to infants and toddlers who
have developmental disabilities, delays or are at risk of developmental
delays. Services work to optimize babies' cognitive, physical, emo
tional and social development, and chance for success. Services are
provided in the child's natural environment (home, day care, play
ground, etc.).

Home Visiting Services - A number of different prevention programs
are offered in the home during those critical early years of a child's
life. A spectrum of services includes support .to new mothers and
those struggling, to parent; services for children with chronic health
conditions; prenatal services for babies being born at a disadvantage
into low-income families; and programs to encourage positive early
parent/child relationships and promote optimal early childhood devel
opment. Services are provided by nurses, social workers, develop
mental specialists, occupational therapists, health educators, and home
visitors.

Adoption - A licensed child-placing agency, the Organization has been
forming families through adoption since 1914. The Organization's
adoption professionals provide home studies and adoption services
for families looking to adopt and provide counselling and support to
birth-parents who are considering the adoption option.

8



2. Children, Youth, and Family - Intervention and Treatment Programs
The Organization contracts with the State of New Hampshire, the federal
government, and insurance companies, to provide a continuum of services
for children, adolescents and young adults. Programs are delivered in the
home, schools, or community, and include mental health counseling and
substance abuse treatment, as well as a complex system of family stabi
lization and preservation programs, child protection services, and services
for at-risk youth. Some of the programs include:

Foster care - The Organization works with the State of New Hamp
shire in placing children who have been rescued from dangerous home
environments, Into safe, stable, loving homes. The Organization recruits
and supports foster families and works to facilitate permanency for
each child.

Home Based Services - The Organization has a number of programs
provided in the family home that are designed to help families who are
struggling through daily life - where children are at risk. Services work
to thwart domestic violence, rebuild families, and to improve family
functioning. The Organization empowers families with the skills and
resources they need to provide for their children and become self-
sufficient.

3. Runaway and Homeless Youth Services ~
The Organization is the sole provider of services for runaway and home
less youth In Manchester and the Seacoast. A full spectrum of services
features outreach to at-risk youth that includes survival aid on the streets
and basic needs fuifillment at the drop-in center, as well as crisis interven
tion, educational and vocational advocacy, housing, and case manage
ment. The Organization also provides behavioral health and substance
use counseling where needed. The Organization works with school systems,
police, and other agencies in addressing the needs of New Hampshire's
homeless youth.

4. Senior pare and Independent Living
The Organization helps seniors and individuals with chronic illness or disa
bility to live at home safely and with dignity, and to maintain quality of life.
Under the title of Home Care, services are delivered by homernakers, com
panions, personal care sen/ice providers, and LNAs. The Organization's
caregivers go to client homes to help with everything from cooking and
cleaning to personal hygiene, medication reminders, mobility,, travel -to
appointments, paying bills, help with daily tasks, and communication with
family members.



Additionally, the Organization runs two unique programs:

Camp Spaulding - Since 1921, Camp Spaulding has helped campers
from all types of backgrounds enjoy the benefits of a traditional, resident
camp experience. In 2015, the Organization formed a partnership with the
YMCA of Greater Nashua whereby the Organization will own the camp
and the YMCA will handle daily operations and summer programming.

. This collaboration will combine a 96 year camp history, an exceptional
facility, strong community support, and the expertise of two premier New
Hampshire nonprofit organizations.

The New Hampshire Children's Lobby - Established in 1971, the New
Hampshire Children's Lobby is the advocacy wing of Child and Family
Services. The^rogram's mission is to improve the lives of children and
families through legislative, judicial, and public policy initiatives. This com
bination of advocacy and direct service practice uniquely positions the
Organization to serve the best interest of New Hampshire children.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The Organization prepares its consolidated financial statements in accord
ance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles promulgated in the
United States of America (GAAP) for nonprofit organizations. The significant
accounting and reporting policies used by the Organization are described
subsequently to enhance the usefulness and understandability of the consoli
dated financial statements.

Net Assets

The consolidated financial statements report net assets and changes in net
assets in three classes, th.at are based upon the existence or absence of
restrictions on use that are placed by its donors, as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets

Unrestricted net assets are resources available.to support operations.
The only limits on the use of unrestricted net asseis are the broad limits
resulting from the nature of the Organization, the,environment in which it
operates, the purposes specified in . its organizing documents and its
application for tax-exempt status, and any limits resulting from contractual
agreements with creditors and others that are entered into in the course
of its operations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are resources that are restricted by
donors for use for a particular purpose or in a particular future period. The
Organization's unspent contributions are classlfied^in this net asset class if

10



the donor limited their use, as are the unspent appreciation of its donor-
restricted endowment funds.

When a donor's restriction is satisfied, either by using the resources in
the manner specified by the donor or by the passage of time, the expira
tion of the restriction is reported in the consolidated financial statements
by reclassifying the net assets from temporarily restricted to unrestricted
net assets.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets are resources whose use by the Organ
ization is limited by donorrimposed restrictlons'that neither expire by being
used in accordance with a donor's restriction nor by the passage of time.
The portion of the Organization's donor-restricted funds that must be main
tained in perpetuity is classified in this net asset class, as is the Organiza
tion's beneficial interest in perpetual charitable trusts. Unless restricted by
the donor, income earned on permanently restricted net assets is expend
able to support operations, subject to certain restrictions.

All revenues and net gains are reported as increases in unrestricted net
assets in the Statement of Activities unless the use of the related resources is
subject to temporary or permanent donor restrictions. All expenses and net
losses, other than losses on endowment investments, are reported as
decreases in unrestricted net assets. Net losses on endowment investments
reduce temporarily restricted net assets to the extent that temporarily
restricted net gains from prior years are unspent and classified there;
remaining losses are classified as decreases in unrestricted net assets. If an
endowment fund has no net gains from prior years, such as when a fund is
newly established, net losses are classified as decreases in unrestricted net
assets.

-Principles of Consoiidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization include the accounts
of Child and Family Services of New Hampshire and Child and Family Realty
Corporation, a commonly controlled organization. All inter-organization trans
actions have been eliminated.

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information
does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016, from
which the summarized information was derived.
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Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are short term, interest bearing, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, unless the investments are
held for meeting donor restrictions. Temporarily restricted cash investments
held within investment portfolios are excluded from cash equivalents.

Investments

The Organization maintains pooled investment accounts for its restricted
endowments. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are allocated to the
individual endowments based on the relationship of the market value'of each
endowment to the total market value of the pooled investment accounts, as
adjusted for additions to or deductions from those accounts.

Accounts Receivable and Revenue

Accounts receivable is recognized when qualifying costs are incurred for
cost reimbursement grants or contracts or when a unit of service is provided
for performance grants. Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to
independent audit under the Office of Management and Budget's, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, and review by grantor agencies. The review could result in
the disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the grants or reductions
of future grant awards. Based on prior experience, the Organization's man
agement believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any, would not materially
affect the financial position of the Organization.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts for receivables is reviewed
on an ongoing basts by the Organization's management and adjusted as
required through the provision for doubtful accounts (bad debt expense). In
determining the amount required in the allowance account, management has
taken into account a variety of factors.

Beneficial Interest

The Organization is the beneficiary of perpetual charitable trusts. The benefi
cial interest in the trust is reported at Its fair value, which is estimated as the
fair value of the underlying trust assets. Distributions of income frorh the trust
assets are restricted to use and are reported as increases in temporarily,
restricted net assets until expended in accordance with restrictions. The value
of the beneficial interest in the trust is adjusted annually for the change in its
estimated fair value. Those changes in value are reported as increases in
permanently restricted net assets because the trust assets will never be
distributed to the Organization.

12



Properiy and Equipment

Property and equipment is reported at cost, if purchased, and at fair value
at the date of donation, if donated. Any such donations are reported as unre
stricted support unless the donor has restricted the donated asset for a spe
cific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use, and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment,
are reported as restricted support. Absent donor stipulations regarding how
long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports expi
rations of donor restrictions over the useful life of the asset. The Organization
reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at that
time.

Properly and equipment is capitalized if it has a cost of $1,000 or more and a
useful life when acquired of more than one year. Repairs and maintenance
that do not significantly increase the useful life of the asset are expensed as
incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Buildings and improvements 15 - 50 years

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 5 -10 years

Vehicles 5 years

Software 5 years

Property and equipment is reviewed for impairment when a significant change
in the asset's use or another indicator of possible impairment is present. No
impairment losses were recognized in the consolidated financial statements in
the current period.

Interest-Rate Swap

An interest-rate swap is utilized to rriitigate interest-rate risk on bonds payable
(Note 9). The related liability is reported at fair value in the Statement of
Financial Position, and unrealized gains or losses are included in the State
ment of Activities.

Accounting for Contributions

Contributions, including unconditional-promises to give, are recognized when
received. All contributions are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets
unless use of the contributed assets is specifically restricted by the donor.
Amounts received that are restricted by the donor to use in future periods or
for specific purposes are reported as increases in either temporarily restricted
or permanently restricted net assets, consistent with the nature of the
restriction. Unconditional promises with payments due in future years have an
implied restriction to be used in the year the payment is due and, therefore,
are reposed as temporarily restricted until the payment is due unless the
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contribution is clearly intended to support activities of the current fiscal year or
is received with permanent restrictions. Conditional promises, such as match
ing grants, are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is, until all
conditions on which they depend are substantially met.

Gifts-in-Kind Coniributions

The Organization periodically receives contributions in a form other than cash.
Contributed property and equipment is recognized as an asset at its esti
mated fair value at the date of gift, provided that the value of the asset and its
estimated useful life meets the Organization's capitalization policy. Donated

use of facilities is reported as contributions and as expenses at the estimated
fair value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. If the use of the
space is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one year, the con
tribution" is reported as a contribution and an unconditional promise to give at
the date of gift, and the expense is reported over the term of use. Donated
supplies are recorded as contributions at the date of gift and as expenses
when the donated items are placed into service or distributed.

The Organization benefits from personal services provided by a substantial
number of volunteers. Those volunteers have donated significant amounts of
time and services to the Organization's program operations and in Its fund-
raising campaigns. However, the majority of the contributed services do not
meet the criteria for recognition in the consolidated financial statements.
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles allow recognition of contributed
services only if (a) the services create or enhance nonfinancial assets or
(b) the services would have been purchased if not provided by contribution,
require specialized skills, and are provided by individuals possessing those
skills.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The cost of providing the. Organization's programs and other activities is
summarized on a functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities
and Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses. Expenses that can be
identified with a specific program or support service are charged directly to
that program or support service. Costs common to multiple functions have
been ailocated among the various functions benefited.

Management and general expenses include those costs >that are not directly
identifiable with any specific program, but which provide for the overall
support and direction of the Organization.

Fundraising costs are expensed as incurred, even though they may result in
contributions received in future years.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires manage
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period and the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at
the date of the consolidated financial statements. On an ongoing basis, the
Organization's management evaluates the estimates and assumptions based
upon historical experience and various other factors and circumstances. The
Organization's management believes that the estimates and assumptions are
reasonable in the circumstances; however, the actual results could differ from

those estimates.

Tax Status

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire is exempt from federal income
tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization
described in Section 501(c)(3). The Organization has also been classified as
an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a)
and qualifies for deductible contributions.

Child and Family Realty Corporation is exempt from federal income tax under
Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization described in
Section 501(c)(25).

1

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in' income taxes
and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for
financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. FASB ASC 740-10 did not have a
material impact on the Organization's consolidated financial statements.

The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt From
Income Tax) are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years
after filing.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash accounts v/ith financial
institutions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may
exceed insured limits. To date, no losses have been experienced in any of
these accounts. Credit risk associated with accounts and contributions receiv

able is considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates. Invest
ments are made by diversified investment managers whose performance is
monitored by the Board of Trustees. Although the fair values of investments
are subject to fluctuation on a year-to-year basis, the Investment Committee
believes that.the investment policies arid guidelines are prudent for the long-
term welfare of the Organization.
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Fair Value Measurements

The Organization reports its fair value measures using a three-level hierarchy
that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. This hierarchy, estab
lished by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, requires that entities
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. The three levels of inputs used to measure
fair value are as follows:

•  Level 1. Quoted, prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets to
which the Organization has access at the measurement date.

•  Level 2. Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level,1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2
inputs include:

— quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

— quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are
not active;

— obsen/able inputs other than quoted prices for the asset or liabil
ity (for example, interest rates and yield curves); and

— inputs derived principally from, or corroborated by, obsen/able
market data by correlation or by other means.

•  Level 3. Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobsen/able
inputs should be used to measure the fair value to the extent that
obsen/able inputs are not available.

When available, the Organizatiori measures fair value using Level 1 inputs
because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value.
However, Level 1 inputs are not available for many of the'assets and liabilities
that the Organization is required to measure at fair value (for example,
unconditional promises to give and in-kind contributions).

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization's consolidated
financial statements are:

•  Initial measurement of noncash gifts, including gifts of investment
assets and unconditional promises to give.

•  Recurring measurement of endowment investments (Note 5) - Level 1.

•  Recurring measurement of beneficial interests in'--trusts (Note 6) -
Level 3.

•  Recurring measurement of line of credit (Note 8) - Level 2.
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•  Recurring measurement of bonds payable and interest rate swap
(Note 9) - Level 2.

•  Recurring measurement of deferred loans (Note 10) - Level 2.

3. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consisted of the following at December 31:

2017 2016

Receivable Allowance Net Receivable Allowance Net

Grants receivable $ 628,244 $ (3,900)$ 624,344 $ 497,717 $ (4,700) $ 493,017
Fees for .service 260,404 - 260,404 110,398 ■ 110,398

$  888,648 $ (3,900) $ 884.748 $ 608,115 $ (4.700) $ 603,415

4. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses at year end relate primarily to prepaid insurance and
contracts.

5. Investments

Investments at fair value consist of mutual funds totaling $17,630,209 and
$15,900,471 at December 31. 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Under the terms of the Organization's line of credit agreement (Note 8), the
Organization has agreed not to pledge these investments as security on any
other debt.

For the years ended December 31. 2017 and 2016j expenses relating to
investment revenues, including management fees, amounted to $27,771 and
$66,376, respectively, and. have been netted against investment revenues in
the accompanying Statements of Activities.

The Organization's policy is to avail itself of a Board-approved percentage of
investment income for operations with any remaining interest, dividends, or
appreciation reinvested. The spending policy approved by the Board of Trus
tees for 2017 is 4.75% of the average fair market value of all investments
over the previous twelve quarters.

As discussed in Note 2 to these consolidated financial statements, the Organ
ization is required to report its fair value measurements in one of three levels,
which are based on the ability to observe in the marketplace the inputs to the
Organization's valuation techniques. Level 1, the most observable level of
inputs, is for investments measured at quoted prices in active markets for
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identical investments as of the December 31. 2017. Level 2 is for investments

measured using inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets, quoted prices
for the identical asset in inactive markets, and for investments measured at

net asset value that can be redeemed in the near term. Level 3 is for invest

ments measured using inputs that are unobservable, and is used in situations
for which there is little, if any, market activity for the investment.

The Organization uses the following ways to determine the fair value of its
investments:

Mutual funds: Determined by the published value per unit at the end of
the last trading day of the year, which is the basis for transactions at
that date.

6. Beneficial Interest Held in Trust

The Organization is the sole beneficiary of three funds that are administered
by the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation (NHCF). Income from the funds
is to provide assistance to children attending Camp Spaulding and for capital
improvements to the camp. The fund resolution provides that distributions
from the funds can be made at the discretion of the NHCF Board of Directors.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the fair market value of the funds, which
approximates the present value of future benefits expected to be received,
was $868,099 and $797,544, respectively. The Organization received $32,744
and $32,369 from the funds in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

In addition, the Organization has a split-interest in three charitable remainder
trusts. The assets are held in trust by banks as permanent trustees of the
trusts. The fair value of these beneficial interests is determined by applying
the Organization's percentage interest to the fair value of the trust assets as
reported by the trustee.

Percentage
Trust Interest 2017 2016

Greenleaf 100% ' $ 401,167 $ 375,595
Spaulding 100% 336,123 315,182
Cogswell. 50% .262,517 247,658

Total $ 999,807 $ 938,435

In 2017 and 2016, income distributed by these trusts was $61,372 and
$42,064, respectively. Beneficial interest in funds held by others is reported
at its fair value, which is estimated as the present value of expected future
cash inflows on a recurring basis. As discussed in Note 2, the valuation tech
nique used by the Organization is a Level 3 measure because there are no
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observable market transactions. Changes in the fair value of assets measured
at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs are
comprised of the following:

Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 1,736,098
Change in value of beneficial interest (119)

Balance at December 31, 2016 1,735,979
Change in value of beneficial interest 131,927

Balance at December 31. 2017 $ 1,867,906

7. Property. EQuipment and Depreciation

A summary of the major components of property and equipment Is presented
below:

201.7 2016

Land and land improvements' $ 1,114,949 $ 1,114,949
Buildings and improvements 8.072,313 7,938,789
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 796,686 699,160
Vehicles 101,585 88,391

Software 166,592 166,592

Construction in progress 17.217 -

Subtotal 10,269,342 10,007,881

Less: accumulated depreciation (4,002,980) (3,686,230)

Total $ 6,266,362 $ 6,321,651

8. Line of Credit

The Organization has a $1,500,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a
bank. The line of credit expired on June 30, 2017 and was extended through"
June 30. 2018.-The line is secured by a first lien on accounts receivable,
double negative pledge on all investments of the borrower, and carries a
variable rate of interest at the Wall Street Journal prime rate (4.50% at
December 31, 2017), adjusted daily. At December 31,. 2017, the balance on
this line of credit was $0.

9. Bonds Payable

During 2007, the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority,
(the "Authority") sold $5,540,000 of its Revenue Bonds, Child and Family
Services Issue, Series 2007, and loaned the proceeds of the bonds to the
Organization to refund its Series 1999 Series Bonds and to finance certain
improvements to the Organization's facilities. The Series 2007 Bonds were
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issued with a variable interest rate determined on a weekly basis. Prior to
issuing the Bonds, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap agree
ment (the "Swap Agreement") with Citizens Bank of NH (the "Counterparty")
for the life of the bond issue to hedge the interest rate risk associated with the
Series 2007 Bonds. The interest rate swap agreement requires the Organiza
tion to pay the Counterparty a fixed rate of 3.915%; in exchange, the Counter
party will pay the Organization a variable rate on the notional amount based
on the 67% of one month LIBOR. Counterparty payments to the Organization
were intended to offset Organization payments of variable rate interest to
bond holders. Counterparty credit worthiness and market variability can Impact
the variable rates received and paid by the Organization, with the potential of
increasing Organization interest payments. As a result, the cost of the interest
rate swap for 2017 and 2016 is added to interest expense in the Consolidated
Statement of Functional Expenses. The bonds mature in 2038 and can be
repaid at any time.

The Organization is required yto include the fair value of the swap in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, and annual changes, if any.
in the fair value of the swap in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. For
example, during the bond's 30-year holding period, the annually calculated
value of the swap will be reported as an asset If Interest rates increase above
those in effect on the date of the swap was entered into (and as an unrealized
gain in the Consolidated Statement of Activities), which will generally be indic
ative that the net fixed rate the Organization is paying on the swap is below
market expectations of rates during the remaining term of the swap. The
swap will be reported as a liability (and as an unrealized loss in the Consoli
dated Statement of Activities) if interest rates decrease below those in effect
on the date the swap was entered into, which will generally be indicative that
the net fixed rate the Organization is paying on the swap is above market
expectations of rates during the remaining term of the swap. The annual
accounting adjustments of value changes in the swap, transaction are non-
cash recognition requirements, the net effect of which will be zero at the end
of the bond's 30-year term. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Organi
zation recorded the swap liability position of $1,062,342 and $1,168,384,
respectively. During 2009, there occurred a downgrading of the credit rating
of the Counterparty to the letter of credit reimbursement agreement, which
triggered a mandatory' tender of the Series 2007 Bonds in whole and a tem
porary conversion of one-hundred percent of the principal ainount to a bank
purchase mode under the terms of.said letter of credit reimbursement agree
ment. Since it became evident that the credit markets would not soon return,
to-normalcy, the Organization elected to convert the Series 2007 Bonds from
a weekly rate mode to a bank purchase mode. This new bank purchase mode
created a rate period in which the Series 2007 Bonds bear interest at the tax
adjusted bank purchase rate of 68% of the sum of the adjusted period LIBOR
(30 day) rate and 325 basis points. The bank purchase mode commenced on
July 31, 2009 and expired on July 31, 2014; however, the expiration date was
extended by the Counterparty and the Organization had the option to convert
back to the weekly rate mode. The Series 2007 Bond documents require the
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Organization to comply with certain financial covenants. As of December 31,
2017, the Organization was in compliance with these covenants.

The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned
bonds payable:

Year Amount

2018 $ 140,000

2019., '140,000
2020 150,000

2021 160,000

2022 160,000

Thereafter 3.595.000

$ 4,345,000

10. Deferred Loans - NHHFA

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated
June 7. 2005. The face amount of the note is $550,000, does not require the
payment of interest, and is due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate
located in Dover, New Hampshire.

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated
May 22, 2007.'The face amount of the note is $700,000, does not require the
payment of interest, and is due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate
located in Manchester, New Hampshire.

11. Endowment Funds

The Organization's endowment consists of various individual funds estab
lished for a variety of purposes. Its endowment includes both donor-restricted
funds and funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endow
ments. As required by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, net assets
associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of
Trustees to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on.the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Board-designated Investments

As.of December 31, 2017, the Board of Trustees had designated $15,309,844
of unrestricted net assets as a general endowment fund to support the
mission of the Organization! Since that amount resulted from an internal
designation and is not donor-restricted, it is classified and reported as unre
stricted net assets.
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Donor-designated Endowments

The Board of Trustees of the Organization has interpreted the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preserva
tion of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-
festricted endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary.
As a result of this interpretation, the Organization classifies as permanently
restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent
endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent
endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the
time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the
donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently
restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until
those amounts are appropriated' for expenditure by the Organization in a
manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In
accordance with UPMIFA. the Organization considers the following factors in
making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endow
ment funds; (1)the duration and preservation of the various funds, (2) the
purposes of the donor-restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic
conditions. (4) the possible effect of inflation and deflation. (5) the expected
total return from income and the appreciation of investments. (6) other
resources of the Organization, and (7) the Organization's investment policies.

Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with Individual donor-
restricted" endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA
requires the Organization to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. In accord
ance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, deficiencies of this nature
are required to be restored from either temporarily restricted or unrestricted
net assets, depending' on donor stipulations. These deficiencies result from
unfavorable market fluctuations that occur causing the original donor restricted
contribution, plus accumulated investment earnings that, in accordance with
donor stipulations, are required to be added to the original contribution, to fall
below the accumulated balances. Donor stipulations for permanently restricted-
income'restricted funds require the reclassification of realized and unrealized
earnings to temporarily restricted net" assets. Based on donor stipulations,
there are no temporarily or permanently restricted funds in deficit.

Investment Policy

The Organization has adopted an investment and spending policy to ensure a
total return (income plus capital change) necessary to preserve and enhance
the principal of the fund and. at the same time, provide a dependable source
of support for current operations arid programs. The withdrawal from the fund
in support of current operations is expected to remain a constant percentage
of the total fund, adjusted for new gifts to the fund.
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In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, reasonable diversifica
tion is sought where possible. Experience has shown financial markets and
inflation rates are cyclical and, therefore, control of volatility will be achieved
through investment styles. Asset allocation parameters have been developed
for various funds within the structure, based on investment objectives, liquidity
needs, and time horizon for intended use.

Measurement of investment performance against policy objectives wit! be
computed on a total return basis, net of management fees and transaction
costs. Total return is defined as dividend or interest income plus realized and
unrealized capital appreciation or depreciation at fair market value.

Spending Policy

The Organization's spending policy is 4.75% of the average total endowment
value over the trailing 12 quarters with a 1% contingency margin. This Includes
interest and dividends paid out to the Organization.

Xhe net asset composition of endowment investments as of December 31.
2017 is as follows:

Total Net

Temporarily Permanently Endowment
Restricted Restrided AssetsUnrestricted

Donor-restricted endowment funds
Board-designated endowment funds

Total funds

$ 657,676 $ 1,662,689 $ 2.320,365
15.309.844

$ 15,309,844 $ 657,676 $ 1.662.689 $ 17.630.209

15.309,844

Changes in endowment net assets as of December 31, 2017 are as follows:

Unrestricted

Temporarily
Restricted

Endowment net assets, beginning of year $ 14.027.737 $ 475,050 $
Contributions 58,257
Witlxlrawals (1,020,000)
Investment income 2.168,644
Net assets released from restriction 75,206

257.832

(75.206)

Permanently
Restricted

1,397,684
265,005

Total Net

Endowment

Assets

15.900.471

323.262

(1.020.000)
2.426.476

Endowment net assets, end of year $ 15.309.844 $ 657,676 $^^J^662j68^
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12. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restriclecl net assets at December 31 were comprised of the

■  . 2017 2016

Program restrictions:
Camp
Child abuse prevention
Early intervention
Family counseling
Homecare

Human trafficking
Teen and youth

Subtotal

Capital campaign restrictions:
Camp Pavillion
Camp Spaulding
Renovated teen center

Union Street

Subtotal

Cumulative appreciation on permanently
restricted net assets .

Total

$  134,161 $  96.925

322,306 194,372

2,000 7,000

20,860 44,588

50,000 40,000

6,000 -

131.895 133.350

667,222 516,235

257,431 265,680

249,224 299.000

215,463 232,037

204.189 210,994

926.307 1.007,711

657,676 475,050

$ 2.251.205 $  1,998,996

13. Net Assets Released from Restriction

Net assets are released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
■  restricted purpose, or by the passage of time.

14. Transactions v\^ith Related Parties

The Organization procures a portion of their legal services from a local law
firm that employs an attorney who also serves on the Organization's Board of
Directors. The attorney board member does not personally perform the legal
services. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the total legal expense
from related parties was $20,663.
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16. Defined Contribution Plan

The Organization maintains a 403(b) Thrift Plan (the Plan). The Plan is a
defined contribution plan that ail eligible employees may immediately make
elective participant contributions to upon hire. A pretax voluntary contribution
is permitted by employees up to limits imposed by the Internal Revenue Code
and other limitations specified in the Plan. There were no contributions made
to the plan by the Organization for the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively.

16. Operating Leases .

The Organization leases office space under the terms of non-cancellable
lease agreements that are scheduled to expire at various times through 2018.
The Organization also rents additional facilities on a month to month basis.
Rent expense under these agreements totaled $141,787 and $129,338 for
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

17. Concentrations of Risk

The majority of the Organization's grants are received from agencies of the
State of New Hampshire. As such, the Organization's ability to generate

■resources via grants is dependent upon the economic health of that area
and of the State of New Hampshire. An economic downturn could cause a
decrease in grants that coincides with an increase in demand for the Organ
ization's services.

The Organization invests in various investment securities. Investment securi
ties are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market, and credit
risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it
is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment secu
rities will occur in the near term and that such change could materially affect
the amounts reported in the Consolidated Staterhenl of Financial Position.

18. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 27, 2018, which is
the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
Events occurring after that date have not been evaluated to determine
whether a change in the consolidated financial statements would be required.
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Child tnd FtmUy Services New Hempshtre

ConsoOdaied Schedule of Operiitng Expenses
Forttie Yeer Ended Decembef 3i. 2017

(with compsTBlfve lotals for ihs yeer ended December 31.2016)

Child Abuse Adoptions
Tm.1 Treatment ChHd and uanegement

Family and SFamly Abuse ' Early Pregnancy ChBd Summer Told and 2017 2016
nmnseOnn Youih Prevention InlervenUon 'Hofnecpfy Coimselino Artvonnnv Cemo Prooram Gerard . ISifii Total

Salerles end weges S  522,665 $  652.919 $  1,354,655 S 1,046,937 3 269,423 i 1,598,573 3  76,399 3 111,810 3  6.707 3  5,642,108 3  821,492 3 265,130 3 6,926.730 3 6.669.191
Employee benefits 37,32< 150.239 149,749 143,558 25,368 152.914 17.176 2,894 665 660,093 75.328 25.925 761,346 624,248

?ayro( related costs 60,646 69.118 157.560 114,720 28,621 179,646 6.661 8,721 534 646,231 73,785 31,004 751.020 691.003
MHeege retmborsemenl -  9,601 40.361 235,980 57,575 16,478 56,311 1,706 217 74 416,205 2,363 959 421.527 415.527
Contracted services 22,562 31333 60,627 153,644 18.505 20,030 7.847 6,966 163.932 <85,786 44.336 16,950 547.074 537.359
Accourdlng -

- . . - • . . 30,330 . 30,330 '  26.650

Assistance to Individuals 5,012 197.539 390,953 136,033 1,505 2.431 500 6,026 744,299 . ■ 744,299 681.368
CommunlcaUons 10,050 40,516 39,937 25,217 4,881 ~ 20,441 1329 1,569 742 145,664 3,950 5,312 154,946 149,797
Conferences. convenUons,
meetings 3,595 3,026 2,650 15,403 2,038 1.002 410 1,723 1 29,850 12,376 3,493 45.719 62.030

Depreciation 22,292 59,535 65,161 68,591 10.269 12.003 5.144 3,430 1,715 248,160 68.^ . 316.750 321236
Irvldnd contrtbuUons 40 96.448 39,106 17 . 196 . 135,609 23.594 . 159,403 226.102
Insurance 5,371 10,827 16,266 1S.174 3,224 10,907 752 633 227 64,583 7,550 2,545 74,678 75.539
Interest 22,944 35.300 67,070 70,600 10,590 12,355 5,295 3,530 1,765 229,449 70.600 300,049 291,014
legal . - . • - . . . . 27.320 • 27,320 54,611
Urmberenlp dues 1.795 1,024 1,425 6,195 450 6,514 - 600 - 18.203 20,019 '  1404 40,628 29,614
Uiseeleneous 1.904 4.475 9.006 3,488 4,316 6,600 176 220 278 30,645 10,129 1291 43,065 141533
Occupancy 38.936 128.358 107.440 67,757 9,760 36,336 2.575 3,394 363 393.419 24.954 6,195 426.566 397,580
Printing and pubQcallons 1.213 2.117 6,925 15,350 606 5,966 784 855 1 33,999 4.067 30,005 66,101 63,800
Rental and epulpmenl
mafnienance 8,210 13,799 24,712 24,656 3,698 7,292 1,810 1,317 839 86,533 21.602 1,334 109,469 103.322

Supplfes 5.700 29.306 19,274 11,666 1,734 13,904 ' 575 598 47 62,604 7.879 1303 92,936 73.795
Travel 1.511 30.569 7.144 14,166 862 3,940 176 219 275 58.984 179 142 59,285 51,062.

Current yearlotals J  779,613 S  1,617.531 S  2.757.646 .1 1.993,722 3 412,763 3 1147.369 3 130.493 3 146.686 3 186.391 3  10.374,624 3  1.350.475 3 397,992 3 12.123.291

Pilor yeer totels t  626.4^5 S 1.661.117 $ 2.817,039 i 1.017.314 i <53.SB8 I 2.027.667 t 140.57.S t 126.068 t 203.647 t 1.252.566 S <62.536 ' S 11.690,661

See Independent AudOors* Repoil
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Borja Alvarez de Toledo, M.Ed.

464 Chestnut St, Manchester, NH. 03105/ 603-782-6442

alvarezdetoledob@waypointnh.org

Professional Profile

•  A seasoned leader with more than 18 years of senior level non-profit management experience.
•  Strong business acumen with emphasis on developing processes to ensure the alignment of

strategy, operations, and outcomes with a strength based approach to leadership development.
•  Collaborative leader using systemic and strategic framework in program development, supervision

and conflict resolution.

Professional Experience

Waypoint, formerly Child and Family Services of New Hampshire
Manchester, NH December 2013- Present

- President and CEO

•  Responsible for program planning and development, insuring that Waypoint meets the community
needs.

•  Advance the public profile of Waypoint by developing innovative approaches and building productive
relationships with government, regional and national constituencies.

•  Acts as advisor to the Board of Directors and maintains relationships with the regional Boards
•  Responsible for all aspects of financial planning, sustainability and oversight of Waypoint's assets
• Work with Development staff and Board of Directors to design and implement all fundraising

activities, including cultivation and solicitation of key individuals, foundations and corporations

Riverside Community Care
Dedham, MA 2009-2013

Division Director, Child and Family Services

•  Responsible for strategic vision, planning and implementation of the programmatic, operational and
financial sustainability of a $17M division with more than 300 employees.

•  In partnership with The Guidance Center, Inc.'s board of directors, played leadership role in
successfully merging with Riverside Community Care, through a process that involved strategic
planning, analysis and selection of a viable partner.

•  Provide supervision to managers using a strength based approach and a collaborative coaching
model to leadership development.

The Guidance Center, Inc.
Cambridge, MA 1998 - 2009

- Chief Operating Officer 2007 - 2009

•  Hired initially as Director of an intensive home-based family program and through successive
promotions became responsible for all operations in the organization.

•  Responsible for supervision of Division Directors, strategic planning and development of new
initiatives.

•  Developed strategic relationships with state and local funders, and partnered with community
agencies to support the healthy growth of children and families.

Private Practice In Psychotherapy and Clinical Consultation
Madrid, Spain 1992 - 1998



Universidad Pontificia de Comillas

Madrid. Spain 1991 - 1998

"Adjunct Faculty
•  Taught graduate level courses in Family and Couples Therapy program
•  Practicum program supervisor; Supervised first year Master's Degree students through live

supervision in the treatment of multi-problem families.

Centre M^dico-Pslcopedagdgico
Madrid, Spain 1994 _ 1997

"Clinical Coordinator/Director of Training.
•  Member of a multi-disciplinary team that provided assessment and treatment to families victims of

terrorism and had developed Post Traumatic Stress Disorder.

ITAD (Institute for Alcohol and Drug Treatment),
Madrid, Spain 1991_ 1994

- Senior Drug and Alcohol Counselor, Drug and Alcohol Program
•  Provided evaluation and treatment for chemically dependent adults and their families.
- Senior Family Therapist, Couples and Family Therapy Program
• Worked as a family therapist in the evaluation and treatment of adolescents and families.

Charles River Health Management
Boston, MA 1989- 1991

- Senior Family Therapist, Home Based Family Treatment Program.

Education

Graduate Certificate of Business

University of Massachusetts, Lowell, 2000.
Master's Degree in Education
Counseling Psychology Program. Boston University, 1989.
B.A. in Clinical Psychology
Universidad Pontificia de Comillas, Madrid, Spain. 1988

Publications

2009 Ayers,S & Alvarez de Toledo, B. Community Based Mental Health with Children and Families. In A.
R. Roberts (Ed.),Social Worker's Desk Reference (2'^ ed.),New York: Oxford University Press, 2009

2006 Topical Discussion: Advancing Community-Based Clinical Practice and Research: Learning in the
Field. Presented at the 19'^ Annual Research Conference: A System of Care for Children's Mental
Health: Expanding the Research Base, February 2006, Tampa, FL.

2001 Lyman, D.R.; Siegel, R.; Alvarez de Toledo, B.; Ayers, S.; Mikula, J. How to be little and still think
big: Creating a grass roots, evidence based system of care. Symposium presented at the 14"^
Annual Research Conference in Children's Mental Health, Research and Training Center for
Children's Mental Health, February 2001, Tampa, FL.

2006 Lyman, D.R., B. Alvarez de Toledo, The Ecology of intensive community based intervention. In
Lightburn, A., P. Sessions. Handbook of Community Based Clinical Practice. Oxford University
Press, 2006, England.

2001 Lyman, D.R., B. Alvarez de Toledo (2001) Risk factors and treatment outcomes in a strategic
intensive family program. In Newman, .C, C. Liberton, K. Kutash and R. Friedman, (Eds.) A System
of Care for Children's Mental Health: Expanding the Research Base (2002), pp. 55-58. Research
and Training Center for Children's Mental Health, University of South Florida, Tampa, FL.

1994-98 Research papers and professional presentations in peer reviewed journals In Spain

Languages

Fluent in Spanish, French and Italian.



CDJ-LEEN_IVI.JV_E.S_

464 Chestnut St.

Manchester, NH 03105/603-518-4362

ivesc(g) cfsnh.org

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Proactive executive with a formidable record of driving systemic change and business expansion. Nimble
administrator virith strategic planning, business process improvement, cost controls and performance management
experience. Collaborative leader with Inspirational and decisive management style who achieves exceptional,
rather than expected, results. Catalyst for open communications towards a climate of learning to benefit company
and individuals.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NH, Manchester, NH • 2018-Present
Statewide private nonprofit that works to advance the well-being of children and families through an array of
community-based services.

Chief Operating Officer
•  Oversees all aspects of program delivery including; fiscal and personnel management, quality assurance and

program development

ROCKPORT MORTGAGE CORPORATION, Gloucester, MA • 2008-2017
Leading national lender of US Housing & Urban Development insured commercial loans in healthcare, multifamily
and affordable housing sectors.

Vice President, Operations & Quality Control
•  Report to principals with overall responsibility for achieving strategic objectives through oversight of the day-to

day operations of five multi-disciplinary underwriting teams by providing support at the transactional level as
well as in the development of procedures and operating practices to match RMC's continued growth.

•  Ensure RMC'S compliance with their federally mandated Quality Control Plan through employee development
initiatives, monitoring of RMC'S operational practices while integrating new HUD directives into RMC'S existing
best practices.

IVES DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATES, Manchester, NH •2005-2018
Consultancy providing strategic planning and leadership development to public, private and nonprofit companies
throughout New England.

Principal
Design and facilitate customized corporate retreats, including strategic planning sessions, executive and Board of
Directors' training and development, creation or re^affirmation of vision, mission and values and efforts to re-align
leadership around key priorities and future direction of the organization. Integrate opportunities to shift •
organizational culture to more open and candid communications.
•  Led an 18-month comprehensive change initiative that

o Resulted in the development of a transition plan for the assimilation of an Interim Executive Director
including an operations plan that aimed to recalibrate the culture;

•  Transformed climate of accountability for a $55M client by implementing Balanced Scorecard strategic
measurement system. Designed, coordinated and fecilitated on-site intemal and extemal analysis of 11 retail
locations in 9 states, analyzing threats and weaknesses In business to build a platform for growth.

CAREER NOTE: Concurrent with consulting enterprise (2006 - 2010), designed and taught introductory and upper level
psychology and sociology courses at Granite State College in Concord, Manchester and Portsmouth. New Hampshire.



COLLEEN M. IVES • Page 2

GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING, Concord, NH • 2001-2005
Statewide nonprofit offering long-term care, employment, transportation, advocacy, and other community-based
services.

Acting Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer
Led internal operations, including service and program delivery, finance, human resources, fundraising and
marketing. Transformed organization's culture by promoting a climate of excellence, systemic solutions and
learning that benefited the organization and Individual employees. Evaluated operational results and fecilltated
business processes and controls that promoted efficiency and internal Information flow. Developed short- and
long-range operating plans. Supported up to 14 management-level employees, staff of 90, and $13M annual
operating budget. Held complete performance management authority as well as autonomy to engage in private
and state/federal contracts.

•  Increased revenue by 78% with more effective grant administration, successful applications for new
competitive grants, initiating a comprehensive development / fundraising plan, and increasing the fee-for-
service lines of business.

•  Increased consumers served from 400 to 3,000+ individuals within three-year period by restructuring existing
programs, developing new programs and increasing program accountability with monthly management reports

•  Established foundation for 36-month capacity building plan to enhance Infrastructure and overall operations by
conducting full organizational audit and successfully presenting to Board of Directors.

• ^panded services and leveraged long-term grant opportunity through company acquisition. Successfully
Integrated organizational cultures and business practices, including human resource policies, management
teams and compensation/benefits.

•  Recommended, designed and implemented internal controls and operating procedures for all departments
(Human Resources, Finance, Public Relations/ Development, Long-Term Care, Community Living and
Employment Services).

•  Increased efficiency, raised credibility of financial reporting and reduced headcount by implementing state of
the art technology with expertise of retained IT consultant.

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION, SERVICES FOR
BLIND AND VISUALLY IMPAIRED;Concord, NH • 1992-2000
Statewide organization providing Registry of Legal Blindness, Sight Services for Independent Living, Vocational
Rehabilitation and a Business Enterprise program.

Statewide Director
Managed professional staff of 8 to deliver services that included 15 statewide rehabilitative support groups, career
counseling and vending machine/food service enterprises in State and Federal buildings.
•  Awarded $1.2M 3-year federal grant to provide peer support services in 15 locations across the state
•  Led Department to highest rank in standards and benchmarks among 7 other regional offices.
•  Enhanced team atmosphere by integrating 4 distinct statewide programs into a cohesive unit.
•  Cultivated relationships and formal partnerships with various stakeholders in the statewide network of social

and human services and employment arenas.

EDUCATION

Doctorate In Human and Organizational Systems
Master of Arts in Human Development

Fielding Graduate University, Santa Barbara, California

Master of Arts/CAGS in Rehabilitation Counseling
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology and Philosophy
Assumption College, Worcester, Massachusetts



ANTHONY F. CHEEK. JR.
464 Chestnut St

Manchester, NH 03105
Phone:(603)518-4113
Email: cheekt@cfsnh.org

EXPERIENCE: Child & Family Services Manchester. NH "
01/11-Present Vice President/CFO

Oversee finance, human resource and information technology functions for a private non-profit
human services age/icy with 300 employees and a budget of $12 Million.

3/07-1/11

Fountains America. Inc.. PIttsfleld. NH

Vice President/Director of Finance

Overall responsibility for the corporate finance, human resource and information technology
functions of a US holding company and its three operating divisions, all subsidiaries of fountains
pic headquartered in the UK.

US budget responsibility $7 Million, Group budget $100 Million.
Prepare and monitor annual budgets.
Provide monthly financial analysis and forecasts to US President and UK group CFO.
Manage corporate risk matters Including legal, Insurance and compliance issues.
Oversee corporate tax matters and accounting standards compliance.
Manage accounting department staff of sb( for maximum efficiency and
responsiveness to internal and extemal stakeholders.
Manage all human resource and payroll functions.
Manage IT infrastructure and support needs.
Work with US President and Division Presidents on strategic issues, company growth
initiatives, product and regional cost analysis and acquisition/due diligence projects.'

2/96- 3/07

Lakes Region Community Services Council. Inc.. Laconia. NH
Director of Finance (3/98-3/07)

Oversee finance, human resource and information technology functions for a private non-profit
human services agency with 300 employees, involving four corporate entities and a budget of $20
Million.

Prepare and monitor annual budgets, and report monthly to Board of Directors.
Negotiate funding with the New Hampshire Department of Health,and Human •
Services.

Prepare and manage contracts with funding sources and vendors.
Supervision of 15 staff in finance, human resources and other administrative
functions.

Administer the agency's personnel polities, compensation and benefit plans.
Ensure compliance with state and federal labor regulations.
Oversee the installation and support of agency computer systems and networks.
Implemented new IT network infrastiucture for satellite offices to improve



communication and optimize operations.
Implemented new Medicaid billing and data collection software system.
Manage all corporate risk management including legal issues, insurance coverage
and corporate compliance matters.

Assistant Controller (^9S-ZI98)

Manage Accounting department responsible for five interrelated corporations.
Oversee general ledgers for all corporations including timely monthly closings and
account recondliations.

Present financial statements at monthly Board meeting.

Manage staff of five including A/R, A/P, and G/L staff.
Responsible for coordination of annual audits.
Assist in preparation and maintenance of annual budgets.
Converted general ledger software from an in-house system to Solomon IV, a Windows
based multi-company software system.
Responsible for the startup of two new corporations.

Provide Executive Directors v/ith accurate and timely operating statements and finariclal
analysis.

Responsible for dally cash management and banking relationships.

11/87-2/96 Bovd's Potato Ohio Co.. Inc.. Lvnn. MA

Controller/General Manager

•  Prepared and analyzed monthly profit and loss statement
•  Monitored and controlled the fiov\/ of cash receipts and disbursements.

•  Researched, designed specifications for and implemented a computer system to •
automate order entry, A/R, A/P, and inventory control, reducing data entiy by 25% and
Improving Inventory control.

•  Coordinated annual audits.

•  Administered group insurance plans and workers compensation program. Introduced
new programs that resulted in savings to company and reduced workplace accidents.

•  Renegotiated union contracts with union management
•  Managed all aspects of transportation and distribution, to ensure prompt deliveries and

customer satisfection.

•  Supervised a staff of 20 including office, warehouse and transportation personnel.

EDUCATION:

1986 Bachelor of Science In Business Administration
University of New Hampshire. Durham. NH

COMPUTER SKILLS:

Advanced computer skills including Microsoft Excel, Word and Access. Solomon
Dynamics and Sage Accpac accounting systems. Crystal and FRx report writers.



Waypoint

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Borja Alvarez de
Toledo

CEO $180,000 10% $18,000

Colleen Ives COO $105,000 0 0

Tony Cheek CFO $100,339 0 0



JelTrty A. Meyers
Commissioner

Joseph E. Ribsam. Jr.

Director
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SER VICES

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN YOUTH & FAMILIES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, Nil 03301-3857

603-27!-445t 1-800-852-3345 Ext 4451

Fax:603-271-4729 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcyf

April 11. 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Division for Children, Youth
and Families (DCYF). to amend an existing sole source contract virith Child and Family Services of
New Hampshire, Vendor #17766-8002, 464 Chestnut Street, PO Box 448, Manchester, NH 03105, by
increasing the price limitation by $126,922, from $126,922 in an amount not to exceed $253,844, and
extending the contract completion date from June 30, 2018 to December 31, 2018, to provide services
to DCYF to assist in closing overdue Child Protection Assessments, effective July 1, 2018, upon
Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% General Funds

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for SFY 2019.

05-96-045-450010-61270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, EMPLOYMENT
SUPPORT

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Total

Amount

SFY

2018

102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
45030354 $126,922 -0- $126,922

SFY

2019

102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
45030354 -0- $126,922 $126,922

Subtotal: $126,922 $126,922 $253,844

Total; $253,844



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

Page 2

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because Child and Family Services of New Hampshire has a broad
and deep understanding of the New Hampshire child protection system and has relationships with
multidisciplinary professionals, including law enforcement, medical, and educational, statewide. This
work also requires that the vendor have .the capability to recruit and train a qualified workforce quickly,
which this vendor has accomplished.

Funds in this agreement will be used to make payment to the vendor to continue to close
overdue child protection assessment cases from all district offices of the New Hampshire Department
of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and Families (DCYF). Closing of
assessments will be assigned to the vendor and completed as requested during the contract period.
The vendor will review the specific child protective assessments in need of closure and complete
required collateral contacts, data entry and required closing paperwork for these assessments
according to DCYF Policy.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract. Revisions to General Provisions, this Agreement
contained language to extend for up to one (1) additional year, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council. The Division is exercising this renewal option for a period of six (6) months.

The Contractor successfully fulfilled and achieved the performance measures in the original
contract albeit with one less active case aide (from six (6) to five (5)) to perform duties as stated in the
contract factoring in this decrease in staff. In a seven (7) week period, the Contractor closed 258
cases, which averages 37 per week. In consideration of the fact there are five (5) case aides, the
tasks they must complete in order to make collateral calls, write closing letters and a final disposition,
coupled with the adult learning curve; this is an appropriate number of processed referrals per contract,
which indicates they will "Close approximately forty (40) assessments each week." As of March 9,
2018, the Division has 1,897 overdue assessments. Due to CPSW caseload levels, current child
protection assessment staff and supervisors are not able to complete this work. The Division
anticipates that the Contractor's success rate with closings will continue therefore decreasing the
number of overdue assessment case closures.

The following performance measures will be used to measure the effectiveness of the
amendment agreement:

•  The Contractor will close approximately forty (40) assessments each week, once fully staffed
and training has occurred;

•  The Contractor will close up to 1,000 assessments by the end of the contract period.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

Page 3

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, DCYF will continue to fail to
meet the mandates of NH RSA 169-C "Child Protection Act". DCYF Is required by RSA 169-C to close
protective assessments \Mthin 60 days of their being received by the agency. As stated above. DCYF
still has over 1,800 overdue assessments. The continuation of this contract will allow DCYF to strive to
meet the mandate of NH RSA 169-C.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds.

ctfully submitted.

Christine Tappai
Associate Commissioner

Co

Approved by;
*"jyers

iissioner

The Deparlment of Health and Human Sen-ices' Mission is to join communilies and families
in proi-iding opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Closure of Overdue Child Protective Assessments

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the

Closure of Overdue Child Protective Assessments

This 1** Amendment to the Closure of Overdue Child Protective Assessments contract (hereinafter referred to as
•Amendment One") dated this 26th day of March, 2018, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Child and
Family Services of New Hampshire, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a
place of business at 464 Chestnut Street. Manchester. NH 03105.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
December 20, 2017, ITEM #13B, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment schedules
and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18 of the Agreement and pursuant to Exhibit
C-1, Revisions to General Provisions, Paragraph 3. the parties may amend and renew the agreement for up to one
(1) year upon written agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council; and

(WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, and increase the price limitation to support
continued delivery of these services.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained in the
Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Delete and replace Form P-37, Block 1.7, to read December 31. 2018.

2. Delete and replace Form P-37. Block 1.8. to increase Price Limitation by $126,922 from $126,922 to read:
$253,844.

3. Add Exhibit B-2 Budget - Amendment #1.

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire Amendment #1

S$-2018-DCYF-12-ASMT Page1of3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Closure of Overdue Child Protective Assessments

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
DepsKtfftent of Health and Human Services

Date b / Christine Tappan
Associate Commissioner

/hild and Family Services of New Hampshire

Name:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of County of_ _ on kB , before the undersigned officer.
personally appeareo the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is
signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature dJAviotary Public or Justice of the Peace

Aldry
Name and Title of Notaiy or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: ^ " 7" 3^

owe
5  f

'.ft. 2023

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire Amendment *1

SS-2018-DCYF-12-ASMT Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Closure of Overdue Child Protective Assessments

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

mh
Date

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of

Name: [i
Title: '

fl^

ov or and Executive Council of the State

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire

SS-2018-DCYF-12-ASMT

Amendment #1

Page 3 o( 3



Exhibit B-2 Budget
Amendment #1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Child and Family Services of New Hampshire

SS-2018-DCYF-12-ASMT

Closure of Overdue Child Protective

Budget Request for: Assessments
(Name of RFP)

SPY 2019 Six (6) Months (July 1, 2018 to

Budget Period: December 31. 2018)

Urio:ltem^-;'-:^fe-'1^;,.
Dlf^ .'Tptol, :

'^Tlncrementar Flx^ i:::-ihdlr6rt/fnx(^^^^
1. Total Salary/Wages $  95,307.00 $  6,157.00 $  101,464.00 % of program cost to total costs

2. Employee Benefits $  12.277.00 $  955.00 $  13,232.00 % of program cost to total costs

3. Consultants $ $ $

4. Equipment: $ $ $

Rental $ $ $

Repair and Maintenance $ $  589.00 $  589.00 % of program cost to total costs

Purchase/Depreciation $ $  389.00 $  389.00 % of program cost to total costs

5. Supplies: $ $ $

Educational $ $ $

Lab $ $ $

Pharmacy $ $ $

Medical $ $ $

Office $ $  43.00 $  43.00 % of program cost to total costs

6. Travel $  7,800.00 $  125.00 $  7,925.00 % of program cost to total costs

7. Occupancy $ $  371.00 $  371.00 % of program cost to total costs

8. Current Expenses $ $ $

Telephone $ $  172.00 $  172.00 % of program cost to total costs

Postage $ $ $  - .

Subscriptions $ $  75.00 $  75.00 % Of program cost to total costs

Audit and Legal $ $ $

Insurance $ $  106.00 $  106.00 % of program cost to total costs

Board Expenses $ $  45.00 $  45.00 % of program cost to total costs

9. Software $ $ $

10. Mar1(eting/Communications $ $ $

11. Staff Education and Training $ $  119.00 $  119.00 % of program cost to total costs

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $  898.00 $  898.00 % of program cost to total costs

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ $

Interest Expense $ $  1.494.00 $  1,494.00 % of program cost to total costs

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

TOTAL $ 115,384.00 $  11,538.00 $  126,922.00 1
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.0%

Contractor Initials;

Page 1 of 1



JefTrty A. Meyers
Conobsioocr

Joseph E. Ribsia. Jr.
DirKtor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-4451 1-800^2-3345 Ext445l

Fix: 603-271-4729 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dbbs.nb.gov/dcyf

♦ (36
/- IfjroveJi-

V

December 5, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Division for Children, Youth
and Families (DCYF), to enter Into a sole source contract with Child and Family Services of New
Hampshire, Vendor #17766-6002. 464 Chestnut Street, PO Box 448. Manchester, NH 03105, to
provide services to DCYF to assist in closing overdue Child Protection Assessments, In an amount not
to exceed $126,922, effective January 1, 2018, or upon date of Governor and Executive Council
approval, through June 30, 2018. 100% General Funds

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for SFY 2018.

05-95-04S450010-6127 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, EMPLOYMENT
SUPPORT

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Tttle

Job

Number
Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 45030354 $126,922

Total $126,922

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the work requires a vendor who has a broad and deep
understanding of the New Hampshire child protection system and has relationships with
multidisciplinary professionals, including taw enforcement, medical, and educational, statewide. This
work also requires that the vendor have the capability to recruit and train a qualified workforce quickly.
The selected vendor, Child and Family Services of New Hampshire, has this capability.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council
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Funds in this agreement will be used to make payment to the vendor to close overdue child
protection assessment cases from the Manchester and Concord offices of the New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and Families (DCYF). Closing
of assessments from other DCYF offices throughout the State will be assigned to the vendor and
completed as requested during the contract period. The vendor will review the specific child protective
assessments in need of closure and complete required collateral contacts, data entry and required
closing paperwork for these assessments according to DCYF Policy.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement has the option to extend for up to
one (1) years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall be
provided after June 30, 2019, ar»d the Department shall not be liable for any payments for sen/ices
provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received
from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 biennia.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, DCYF's Adoption
Assistance Program may not meet the requirements of the Adoptions and Safe Families Act of 1997
(H.R. 867) Public Law 105-89 which requires Documentation of Efforts to Adopt. For every child
whose permanency plan is adoption or placement in another permanent home, states are required to
document the steps taken to find an adoptive family or permanent home, place the child with the
adoptive family, a fit and willing relative, a legal guardian, or in another planned living arrangement,
and finalize the adoption or legal guardianship.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds.

Respectfully submitted, *

Jo^ph E. Ribsam, Jr.
Director

Approved by: \ A
jffrey A.v Meyers

cWmissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citixens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMOER P>37 (version S/B/IS)

Suhjeci; ■<R.7ni«.r>rYP.i7.ASMT
NtHke: This t(reemeet tnd sll of Its nttachmenis ihtll become public upon subiuUsion to Oovernor And

Executive Council (br tpprovtl. Any laformeiion ibet is privtte, confldcntltl or proprlMtry must
be cletrly identified to the Agency uid tgrccd to in writing prior to signing the conifACt

ACREEMEKT
The Stile of New Hampshire and the Coruractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name
NH Departmeitt ofHcalih and Human Services

I.) Contractor Name
Child tnd Family Services of New Hampshire

U Contractor Phone
Number

603-51M300

1.6 Account Number

05-95-4 5-4 SOO-61270000 • 102 ■
500731

1.2 State Agency Addreu
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.4 Contractor Address
464 Chestnut Street. PC Box 448
Manchester NH 03105

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

$126,922

1.9 Contracting OfHcer for Slate Agency
C. Maria Retnciaann, Esq.
Director of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 State
603-271-9330

Telephone Number

ContractorSlprature

^jy~Tvv—
1.12 Name and Title ofContractor Signatory

ALTAftCl h<i TolCAo
'  fWiirrvTY l/oM3 AcknmvW^i^ent: Sltteof^,^;^j.^j|^^Countyor

Oxk , before the undersigned ofTicer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the nefaon whose name Is signed in Mock I. II. and aclcnowledged thai she executed this document in the capacity
Indtcotcd

t^pbllc or Justice of the Peace1.13.1
KhT

jsjssr
mry

N>
1.14

\X»m

justice of the Peace yj \ ' ^

1.15 Name and Tlik of State AgoKy Signatory

-'dm: \2/h/ iaSAsL—U— , IjcjT
1.16 ^(Tproval by the N.H. Departmeai of Adminidration, Wvlslon of Personnel ^applkabte)

By: ' [Mrecior, On:

1.17 ApproviJby

By:

Oenerai (Form, Substanoe and Execution) (7/applhebk)

On;

1.18 Approval by the Oovernor and

By; On:

Page 1 of4



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: SS-2018.DCYF-i2.ASMT

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprictao'' must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in uriting prior to sighing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I. I State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire
1.4 Contractor Address

464 Chestnut Street, PO Box 448

Manchester NH 03105

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-518-4300

1.6 Account Number

05-95-4 5-4500-61270000-102-

500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30. 2017

1.8 Price Limitation

$126,922

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
E. Maria Rcinemann, Esq.
Director of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9330

11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Y \Ao

.13 Aclcnowledgeiicm; State of County of

On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated

Peacet. 13.1 or Justice of the

^leMMHifgjtfeAy^offiy^r justice ot the Keace ̂  ^4o^^r lusiice of the Peace

mm

. 15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Date: \^/h/ / "7 ) P. ̂7 6 "
1.16 t^fJproval by the N.I I. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel applicable)

Bv: Director, On:

1.17 Approval bywe Anofwy General (Form, Substance and E.xccution) (if applicable)

\  \^h/nA. ̂LAj -
'(/^pplicablp ̂  j18 Approval by the Governor and Ex

By.

live Council ((/ippplicablp
On:

Page I of 4



2. EM PLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State ofNew Hampshire, acting
through the agency identiHed in block I.I ("State*'), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ('"Contraclor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become efTective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1. 18, unless no such approval is required, in which ca.se
the Agreement shall become efTective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Stale hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall (he State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Slate
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision In this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or aaually
made hereunder, e.xcecd the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. CO.MPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance ofthe Services, the

Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impo.se any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
di.sabilitics. including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of (he United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of (he
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel eng^ed in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who Is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified In block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretaiion of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Slate.

8. EVE.NTOF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
("Event of Default"):
8.1.) failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder, and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, In the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such lime as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in ̂ uity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, irKluding, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval o f the State.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of •
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents.or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcontracts.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its ofTicers and
employees, from and against any and all losses sufTer«l by the
Slate, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity oflhe Slate, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1' The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $l,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsemenis approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Comracior shall furnish to the Contracting Ofiicer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certincate(s)

of insurance for ail insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtificatefs) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificatcfs) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificatcfs) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer Identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
(" Workers' Compensaiion
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described In N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be anached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State ot'New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laus in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
arnendmcnt, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws ofthe State ofNew Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such bcriefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
arc for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Closure of Overdue Child Protective Assessments

Exhibit A

Scooe of Services

The purpose of this contract Is for the Contractor to provide services to the Department for a set
period of time regarding the closing of overdue Child Protection Assessments swhich shall
include;

•  Closing overdue Child Protective Assessment cases from the Manchester and Concord
offices of the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children. Youth
and Families (DCYF); with assessments from other offices assigned as requested:

•  Analysis and review of specific Child Protective Assessments in need of closure;
•  Complete required collateral contacts, data entry and required closing paperwork for

Child Protective Assessments according to DCYF Policy.

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services

they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services wthin ten (lO)'days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the.extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Sen/ices described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Senrice priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30. 2019. and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30. 2019. unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SFY 2020-2021 biennia.

2. Scope of Services
2.1. Contractor will provide the following services to assist with low risk, Level 3 closure of

overdue assessments:

2.1.1. Recruitment and retention of up to six (6) part-time and temporary staff;

2.1.2. Manage administrative tasks related to employment;

2.1.3. Coordinate training of staff with DCYF;

2.1.4. Assist with closures from other DCYF offices as requested:

2.1.5. Close approximately forty (40) assessments each week, with a goal of closing
1,000 assessments by the end of the contract:

2.2. The Contractor will hire part-time and temporary staff to complete the work.

2.3. The Contractor's Chief Operating Officer (COO) will be the main point of contact
between Contractor and DCYF.

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire Exhibit A Contractor i™tiais'^3ll!
SS-2018-iXYF-ASMT Page 1 of3 Date 1?/^ [' V



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Closure of Overdue Child Protective Assessments

Exhibit A

Z.4. I ne uuu will coorainaie training witn LA^rr-.

2.5. Training will include the following;

2.5.1. Bridges use;

2.5.2. Assessment policies;

2.5.3. Procedures;

2.5.4. Decision points; and

2.5.5. Rule outs (assessments not ready to be closed).

2.6. Contractor's staff will work to dose overdue assessments from the Manchester and
Concord offices as the highest priority.

2.6.1. Contractor will submit a report which shall contain the number of assessments
closed.

2.6.2. Overdue assessments to be closed from other offices will be completed by
Contractor on an as requested basis.

2.6.3. Cases assigned will be those containing the oldest dates which need assertive
collateral outreach and Incomplete assessments from cases assigned to staff
who no longer work for DCYF.

2.7. Contractor's staff, once trained, will complete the following tasks during the closing
process:

2.7.1. Verify case information;

2.7.2. Review existing Investigations to determine activities to complete;

2.7.3. Acquire documentation which shall include medical, police and school records.

2.7.4. Enter documentation Into the Bridges system;

2.7.5. Add documents to the case file;

2.7.6. Locate people of interest;

2.7.7. Conduct interviews with collateral contacts which may include but not be
limited to custodial parents, non-custodial parents, physicians, teachers, and
others who may have witnessed alleged child abuse or neglect;

2.7.8. Contact DCYF Lead Project Coordinator/Supervisor if Information obtained
indicates a child safety concern;

2.7.9. Occasional travel in the greater Manchester and/or Concord. New Hampshire
areas to conduct collateral interviews;

2.7.10. Attend department and agency meetings as requested; and

2.7.11. . Submit completed investigations for supervisory case closure review.

3. Staffing
3.1. Contractor's COO will be main point of contact between Contractor and DCYF.

3.1.1. The COO will recruit, interview, hire, monitor and retain up to six (6) staff to
assist with overdue assessments.

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire 6*hibii A Contracior iniiiafs
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Closure of Overdue Child Protective Assessments

Exhibit A

3.:^. Contractor will hire one (1) Leaa uase Aiae wno win proviae services as rererencea in

sub-section 2.7 of this contract Including, but not limited to the following services:

3.2.1. Complete assessments, provide supervisory support to other Case Aides;

3.2.2. Assign assessments to other Case Aides;

3.2.3. Respond to questions from other Case Aides; and

3.2.4. Be the point of contact for Case Aides and DCYF staff;

3.3. Lead Case Aide will work up to twenty-nine (29) hours per week.

3.4. Lead Case Aid will have a Bachelor's Degree in social work, counseling, psychology,
criminal justice or related field.

3.5. Contractor will hire up to five (5) Case Aides who will complete assessment tasks as
referenced in sub-section 2.7 of the contract.

3.6. Case Aides will work t>etween 20-29 hours per week;

3.7. Case Aids will have a Bachelor's Degree in social work, counseling, psychology,
criminal justice or related field. An Associate's Degree with one (1) year of experience
in a human sen/ice field will be considered.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor's staff will, upon completion, submit case closure investigations for
supen/isory review on a daily basis during work hours.

4.2. The Contractor vwill submit monthly, to the Department, with the invoice, a report wrhich
shall contain the number of assessment closures completed for that period.

4.3. The Contractor's Lead Case Aid will submit a final report within thirty (30) days of end of

contract which shall contain the total number of assessment closures completed.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor will ensure that following performance indicators are achieved and
monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

5.1.1. Close approximately forty (40) assessments each week, once fully staffed and
training has occurred;

5.1.2. Close up to 1,000 assessments by the end of the contract period.

5.2. The Contractor will develop and submit to the DHHS. a corrective action plan for any
performance measure that was not achieved.

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire Exhibit A Contractor initials ■
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Closure of Overdue Child Protective Assessments

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1) The Slate shall pay the contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8, Price Limitation for the
services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

1.1. This contract is funded with funds from the General Funds.

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with funding
requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded contractor's current
and/or future funding.

2) Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

2.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of
this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item,

2.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Slate by the twentieth working day of
each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior
month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and returr>ed to the Department in order to
initiate payment. The Coritractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services.

2.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice,
subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available. Contractors will
keep detailed records of their activities related to DHHS-furKled programs and services.

2.4. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form P-37.
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

2.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
DCYFinvoices@dhhs.nh.Qov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Children. Youth and Families
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

2.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in Exhibit
A. Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 8.

3) Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting amounts between
budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to
adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parlies and
may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Child end Family Services of New Hampshire ExNbitB Contractor iniUais.
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Exhibit B-1 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Child and Family Services of New Hampshire

SS-2018-DCYF-12-AS NIT

Closure of Overdue Child Protective

Budget Request for: Assessments
(Name ofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2018 (January 1. 2018 to June 30. 2018)

1. Total Salary/Waqes $ 95,307.00 $  6,157.00 $ 101.464.00 % of program cost to total costs

2. Emolovee Benefits $ 12,277.00 $  955.00 $ 13,232.00 % of program cost to total costs

3. Consultants $ - $ $ -

4. Equipment: $ $ $

Rental $ $ $ -

Repair and Maintenance $- $  589.00 $ 589.00 % of program cost to total costs

Purchase/Depreciation $ $  389.00 S 389.00 % of program cost to total costs

5. Supplies: $ $ $ -

Educational $ $ $

Lab $ $ $

Pharmacy $ $ $

Medical $ $ s -

Office $ - $  43.00 $ 43.00 % of program cost to total costs

6. Travel $ 7,800.00 $  125.00 $ 7,925.00 % of program cost to total costs

7. Occupancy S - $  371.00 $ 371.00 % of program cost to total costs

8. Current Expenses $ $ $ -

Telephone $ $  172.00 $ 172.00 % of program cost to total costs

Postaoe $ $ $ -

Subscriptions $ $  75.00 $ 75.00 % of program cost to total costs

Audit and Leqal $ $ $ -

Insurance $ $  106.00 $ 106.00 % of program cost to total costs

Board Expenses $ $  45.00 $ 45.00 % of program cost to total costs

9. Software $ $ $ -

10. Marketinq/Communications $ $ $ -

11. Staff Education and Traininq $ $  119.00 $ 119.00 % of program cost to total costs

12. Sutxxjntracts/Aqreements $ $  898.00 $ 898.00 % of program cost to total costs

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ $ •

Interest Expense $ $  1,494.00 $ 1,494.00 % of program cost to total costs

$ $ $ -

$ $ $

S $ $

$ - $ $ -

TOTAL i  ̂15,384.00 I i 11,538.00 j $ 126.922l00"
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.0%

Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that ail funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance v^th Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any offtcials. officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sut^Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
ottier document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereur>der to reimtnirse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate

which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be estat>l)shed;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

Extiibil C ' special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitt^ to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records estat)lished herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the followir>g records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. M^ical Records: Where appropriate and as presaibed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patientyredpient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall sut>mit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of Slates, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall retum to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
pulilic officials requiring such informafion in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract: and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - Sptdal Provisions Contractor Intlials^^i^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports; Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim FinarKial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other irtformation required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract arid all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement;

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: AH materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with alt laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Offlcer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the corrtractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the p^ormance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOR): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C - special Provisions Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations; Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Umited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure

' compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 20i 3)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform Its employees in writing. In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliaf>ce
with those conditior^s.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - special Provisions Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its disaetion, review and approve ail subcontracts.

if the Contractor identifies dericiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shaU
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to t>e
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Senrices to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to t)e provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified In Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall t>e deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act, NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Eicniditc-special Provisions Contractor Initials
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder. including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
irKluding any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The Slate shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(8) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account. In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, induding but not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan irtduding, txjt not limited to. any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the Stale as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to dients receiving
sen/ices under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying dients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Division reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to one (1) additbnal year, subjed to
the continued availability of funds, satisfadory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12ofthe General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Wortcplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D;41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certificatjon by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certificdtion or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government vwde suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a dnjg-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee wll}
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was \working. unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted ,
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate ager)cy;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: tH

Datd Name:

■ior Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYtNG

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U;S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs Ondicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Staivlard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:CH-»'0'tf'b PwXuy \ ̂

Date' ' Name: AvjAftn.
Title: ̂  1

(ajiS'JJUaT« CeO
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 ot the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily.result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of v/hy It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Sen/ices' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
vwhom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant teams
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction,' "debarred," "suspended,' "ineligible,' "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant,' "person,* "primary covered transaction.' "principal,' "proposal.' and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lov/er Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lovrar tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
dedde the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Oebarmenl. Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Resportsibility Matters
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended. det>arred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and Its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rerxlered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or locaO
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitoist
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, Slate or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined In 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective bwer tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion ■ Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

ContractorName:Oi^iA'<M'> OWv-y (tMAP

Datrf / Name; ^
Title: ^ \ ,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimlnation requirements, which may include;

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminafing, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under ̂ ts
statute are prohibrted from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity):

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). vjrhich prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities In employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections.1681, 1663, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

-the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and ̂ licy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-23'9. enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency avoids the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administratrve agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will foPArard a copy of ttie finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

ontractorName:C*«>-l> A*\l> PnA/vcy
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